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 ARCHITECTURAL / PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
(Include expanded description of the building/property, setting, significant landscape features, outbuildings, and alterations)

 HISTORY
(Chronological, descriptive history of the property from its construction through at least the historic period [preferably to the present])

Summary

Rose City Park School is located at 2334 NE 57th Street in northeast Portland. The 3.70-acre campus includes a primary, two-story building (278A) 
surrounded by asphalt covered parking and play areas. The red brick building is covered by a flat roof. The irregular shaped ma ss of the building 
rests on a poured concrete foundation. The fenestration consists of a mixture of original wood frame and grouped metal frame wi ndows. Designed in 
the Collegiate Gothic style, the school features glazed terra cotta coping, belt cornice, cartouches, window surrounds, and a cap for the poured 
concrete water table. Four-centered arches cap the entries to the building.

Architectural Description

Rose City Park School is located at 2334 NE 57th Street in northeast Portland. The primary school building is situated at the west corner of a 3.70-
acre rectangular parcel. Development in the surrounding area consists primarily of single family residences built between 1900 and 1950 (Sanborn 
Maps 1924-1928, Sanborn Map 1908-1950 updated). In addition to the primary school building, the campus includes 2 portables classroom facilities 
located at the southwest side of the parc el. An asphalt covered parking area is located at the north end of the parcel. 

The main mass of the primary school building is I-shaped. An L-shaped courtyard separates the primary building from an east win g that houses the 
gymnasium, cafeteria, kitchen, and faculty lounge. The irregular shaped mass of the school complex rests on a poured concrete foundation. The red 
brick building is covered by a flat roof. The fenestration consis ts of a mixture of original wood frame and grouped metal frame  windows. Designed in 
the Collegiate Gothic style, the school features glazed terra cotta coping, belt cornice, cartouches, window surrounds, and cap for the poured 
concrete water table. Four-centered arches cap the entries to the building.

The west wing of the primary building is organized around an I-shaped double loaded corridor. The majority of classrooms are lo cated on the north 
and south sides with administrative and shared facilities located at the center and east side of the building. The media center  is on the east side of 
the main floor. The auditorium is located directly above the medi a center on the 2nd floor. The room features newer carpet, cei ling tiles, and a 
stage. Flooring throughout the building consists of 12"x12" tiles, concrete, carpet, and hardwood with wood baseboards. Tubular  fluorescent fixtures 
are suspended from an acoustic tile clad ceiling. The doors are a mixture of replacement wood and steel. 

Connection to the gymnasium and cafeteria is provided through corridors that extend east and west on the ground floor. The orig inal exterior walls 
and windows are visible in the new corridors. The gymnasium is located on the northeast side of the school. 

The majority of the classrooms are rectangular. Daylight is provided by windows on the exterior wall. Many classrooms feature o riginal woodwork 
including built-in cabinetry, flooring, blackboards, and window surrounds. The flooring in the classrooms consists of a mixture  of concrete and 
12"x12" tile. Tubular fluorescent light fixtures are suspended from the acoustic tile ceiling.

The boilers that provide heat for the building are located in the basement. Heat is conducted through ducts to the individual c lassrooms where the 
air is brought in through a wire grill. Ductwork is also visible in many classrooms and corridors.

Alterations/Integrity

Rose City Park School has evolved since its construction in 1912. Designed to be extensible, two additional units were constructed by 1921. In 1928 
the detached gymnasium was added to the east side of the building. To accommodate the growing numbers of school children in the  neighborhood 
after World War II, the portable buildings were added in 1947. Kitchen fac ilities were added at the west side of the gymnasium in 1956 (Rose City 
Park Facility Profile). 

Other alterations include changes to many of the classrooms to accommodate new uses during the 1950s including the replacement of corridor 
doors and frames in 1964, changes to the flooring in 1985, 1986, 1987, and the enclosure of staircases to comply with fire code s. The media center 
was remodeled in 1984. Many of the windows were replaced in 1983. Other significant changes to the building that likely occurre d during the 1977 
remodel include the installation of exposed ductwork in the 2nd floor corridors and classrooms and construction of walls that p artially enclosed the 
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 RESEARCH INFORMATION
(Check all of the basic sources consulted and cite specific important sources)

Statement of Significance 

Rose City Park School was part of a dramatic building program begun by Portland Public Schools in the early 1900s. Gradually influenced by John 
Dewey’s Progressive Education Movement, the building program responded to changing city demographics and ideas concerning school safety, 
sanitation, and child centered instructional methods beginning in the first decade of the 1900s (Rippa, 1997: passim; Cremin 19 61: 135-153; 
Cubberley 1915: 283-290). By 1905, it became increasingly clear that dramatic increases in school-age children outstripped the district’s current 
classroom capacity and existing schools could not effectively serve areas of the city with new residential development (Cubberl ey 1915: 283-285, 
288-290). 

After several well-publicized school fires elsewhere in the United States, calls for a more fundamental change in the building stock of the district 
began as early as 1906, when Mayor Lane called for the construction of new “fireproof” school buildings (Oregonian, 10-31-1906) . In 1910, various 
city neighborhood “advancement clubs” joined forces to discuss the unfit school buildings in their respective neighborhoods (Or egonian 07-31-1910). 
Soon after this meeting, on August 16, 1910, the Portland City Council enacted a requirement that all schools constructed after  January 1, 1911 
would have to be made with fire proof construction materials (Powers and Corning 1937: 183). Rose City Park School was one of the first 
elementary schools designed to meet the demand for “fireproof” buildings. By 1914, the first joint meeting between Portland cit y officials, 
Multnomah County Commissioners, and the school board, resulting in officials agreeing to work with building code officials to encourage the use of 
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Updated to 1950 Sanborn Fire Insurance Company Map, Portland, Oregon, Map 838. 
Arrow points to Rose City Park School.   



Rose City Park Facility
2334 NE 57th Ave, Portland OR, 97213

Building Periods
1. Original Building (278A), 1912
2. South Wing (278A), 1914


